
Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

1 
 

  
 
Call to Order:  Chair Denis Hebert called the January 4, 2021 meeting  

at 6:03 p.m., followed by the pledge of allegiance. 
 

Present: Chair Denis Hebert; Vice-Chair Erika Mantz; Board Members: Russ 
Cooke; Christopher Cross; Ben Johnson; and Peter Welch; 
Alternate Board members, Rick Stern and Jim Weiner (via phone); 
Board of Selectmen’s Representative, Ken Latchaw; Town Planner, 
John Krebs and Jane Kendall, Recorder 

 

 

Chair Hebert announced that Alternate Board member Jim Weiner was not able 

to attend the meeting in person, but had called in to join the meeting by phone. 

 
I) Zoning Ordinance Discussions 
 

A) Medical Clinics in the Office Zone 
 

Chair Hebert said that he had invited an interested party to attend the discussion, 
but they were not able to come. 

Town Planner, John Krebs said the interested party  would attend the following 
week’s meeting to see if an overnight treatment clinic would be an allowed use in the 
Office Zone. Mr. Krebs said the Board needed to have a general discussion, as the 
interested party was not present to respond to questions. 

Mr. Krebs referred to  Town counsel, Attorney John Ratigan’s opinion in his 
memo to the Board.  

Board member, Russ Cooke asked if there was a definition of medical clinic in 
the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Krebs replied that it was not possible to  define every term in 
the Zoning Ordinance, but they could look it up in a medical dictionary. 

Mr. Krebs said the first step was to determine if the use would be permitted, and 
if not,  the second step would be for the applicant to go before  the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment (ZBA). 

Board member, Chris Cross said due to the proximity to the Industrial and 
Waterfront Zone, he would want to know if overnight personnel would be present to 
assist with evacuation, just as an overnight clerk would be present in a hotel. Mr. Krebs 
said the party in question had other facilities in nice communities in Massachusetts, so 
he assumed that staff would stay overnight with patients.  

Board member Peter Welch said they would also need to determine what kind of 
emergency services would be needed. Chair Hebert commented that any treatment 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

2 
 

facility with medical staff would be responsible for paying for their own ambulance 
services like anyone else. 

Mr. Weiner asked if overnight hospitals were allowed in the Office Zone, and 
asked if anyone had talked to the fire chief. Mr. Krebs said those would be questions 
and requirements if an application came before the Board.  

Vice-Chair Mantz noted that someone had tried to build an overnight treatment 
facility in Dover, but it did not go through. Mr. Krebs responded that a  60-bed facility 
received approval beside Dover Bowling, but it had not been built yet. 

Mr. Krebs stated that Newington’s Zoning Ordinance only listed what was 
allowed, and uses were not allowed if they were not listed. Mr. Krebs went on to say 
that a zoning ordinance could either tell what was, or what was not allowed, but the 
problem was that some uses did not exist when ordinances were written.  

Mr. Welch said that a clinic wanting overnight residents seemed to be excluded 
in the first sentence of the allowed uses in the Office District. Chair Hebert responded 
that  Attorney Ratigan  said that patients were different than residents, but they could 
discuss it further when applicants were before the Board. 

Vice-Chair Mantz commented that medical clinics, hospitals, and nursing homes 
were already allowed in the Commercial District, and she wondered why a medical clinic 
also had to be allowed in the Office District. Chair Hebert responded that sometimes 
allowed uses were interchangeable in the Office and Commercial zones, such as 
medical offices. Chair Hebert added that the State often made determinations on some 
matters, and asked Board members to read Attorney Ratigan ’s memo before the next 
meeting.  
 Vice-Chair Mantz asked if there would be an opportunity for residents to attend 
the meeting. Chair Hebert replied that meetings were open to the  public. 

Mr. Latchaw asked if Attorney Ratigan  would be present. Chair Hebert 
responded that there was no application before the Board, and  it would be an 
informational, non-binding discussion, and the Board still needed to determine if 
permitted use. 
 Mr. Latchaw said he thought it would be important for Attorney Ratigan  to hear 
the  full discussion, and Chair Hebert agreed. 

 
 
 
 
 
B) Discussions of DRAFT for Zoning Amendment proposals for 2021 Town 
Meeting 
 

1) PDA Article III, Section 9 
 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

3 
 

Mr. Krebs stated that although the Town of Newington had no authority to 
regulate land use at the Pease Tradeport, there had been some discussion of what 
might happen if Pease Tradeport was ever privatized, so Chair Hebert proposed that 
there be a reference in the Ordinance that stated that the Town of Newington would 
have time to adopt zoning in response to the change. The statement proposed said, 

 
“In the event that any land under the control of the Pease Development Authority 

(PDA) within the Town of Newington is transferred or sold to any entity other than the 
PDA, NO further development of any property may occur until such time as the Town of 
Newington adopts Ordinances and Regulations that address future development of land 
in Newington that was formerly under PDA control.” 

 
Chair Hebert said currently the Pease Development Authority only reviewed 

developments with the Planning Board as a courtesy, and the Town had no control over 
developments at Pease Tradeport. Chair Hebert went on to say that Governor Chris 
Sununu’s proposal to privatize the Pease Tradeport had been shot down by Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors. Chair Hebert said the Governor said he 
would pursue the possibility through the Federal government, so he wanted to be sure 
there was something in the Ordinance that would give the Town time to respond should 
something happen. 

 
(Alternate Board member Rick Stern arrived at this point in the meeting at 6:25 

p.m.) 
 
Chair Mantz  asked if the airport was under the control of the Federal Aviation 

Administration (FAA) or the PDA. Chair Hebert responded that it was currently under 
the control of the PDA according to FAA rules. Vice-Chair Mantz asked what would 
happen if Pease was privatize. Mr. Cross said it would come under the authority of the 
Town. Mr. Stern added that airports would still have to follow FAA rules if it was turned 
over. 

Board of Selectmen’s representative Ken Latchaw asked if it would make sense 
to say that the Town Ordinance applied to all lands to avoid special and separate rules 
for the PDA. Chair Hebert replied that the Town did not have any jurisdiction over the 
PDA at this time, so they could not create any ordinances unless it was privatized. Mr. 
Krebs added that the property would probably continue as office, commercial or light 
industrial if it was privatized unless the Town decided that they wanted to make it a 
separate zone. 
 

Russ Cooke moved that the proposal to add the  conditional statement “In the 
event that any land under the control of the Pease Development Authority (PDA) within 
the Town of Newington is transferred or sold to any entity other than the PDA, NO 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

4 
 

further development of any property may occur until such time as the Town of 
Newington adopts Ordinances and Regulations that address future development of land 
in Newington that was formerly under PDA control” to Article III, Section 9 giving the 
Town time to respond to the possible privatization of the PDA go to a public hearing. 
Peter Welch seconded the motion.  

 
Discussion ensued. Mr. Cross commented that the only time the statement would 

come into play is if the PDA was transferred to a private entity. Chair Hebert responded 
that the old drive-in land was transferred to the New Hampshire Department of 
Transportation (DOT), but it was still zoned. Chair Hebert added that it would be the 
same for the jurisdiction of water, or for schools that served other towns. 

 
The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
2) Amendment to Article XVII – Floodplain Management, Item XII – 

Special Flood Hazard Areas (p. Z-62) 
  

Mr. Krebs said adding Zone AE was a glaring omission in Article XVII, Item 12 on 
page Z-62 of the Zoning Ordinance that didn’t mean anything without a correction for 
reference, and this was only suggestion that the Federal government made for the 
state. 
 Chair Hebert asked that  the acronym FIRM be spelled out. 

Chair Hebert also asked that the link to the flood insurance rate map be included 
on the Town website, to be sure that link on town website. 
  

Erika Mantz moved that Amendment to Article XVII – Floodplain Management, 
Item XII – Special Flood Hazard Areas, adding “Zone AE”  to Item 12 go to public 
hearing. Russ Cooke seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 

 
3) Proposal to amend Section 2, - Office District “O”, B – Principal 
Uses Permitted 

 
Mr. Krebs stated that there was an RSA that allowed retail and food sales at 

breweries, and he wondered if breweries should be listed in the Office Zone as well as 
the Commercial Zone. 
 Vice-Chair Mantz asked why retail and cooked lobster was not allowed in the 
Office Zone if it was allowed for breweries.  Chair Hebert responded that Stoneface 
Brewery was actually in the Waterfront-Industrial District. Chair Hebert went on to say 
that the State wanted to encourage the exception for breweries some years, ago, and 
that Stoneface had requested a food permit from the State without the knowledge of the 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

5 
 

Town because the permit request had been sent to the City of Portsmouth instead of 
Newington.  

Mr. Cross said the restaurant portions allowed in the Office Zone were only 
accessory for employees, and the like only. Board member Ben Johnson asked why 
restaurants were not allowed in the Office Zone. Chair Hebert said removed years ago. 
Mr. Cross replied that there were more than ten restaurants in the Office Zone at one 
time, and it was decided that it would be better to promote other uses that did not have 
such a high turnover in a buffer along Shattuck Way between the Industrial and 
Commercial Zones. Mr. Johnson said he didn’t think it necessary to add breweries as 
an allowed use in the Office Zone.  

Mr. Cooke asked if breweries were required to sell food on site. Mr. Krebs replied 
that it was  allowed, and that was why breweries were popping up everywhere including 
industrial parks. 

Mr. Weiner said 80% of Stoneface’s revenue was from their brewery, and 40% 
was from their from restaurant.  
 Chair Hebert agreed that it was not necessary to change the Ordinance because 
the State already allowed for the exception. 
 

4) Article III – Zoning Districts 
 

 Mr. Krebs said he was recommending clarification to the language in Article III to 
coincide with the Master Plan’s explanation of distinct districts. 

Mr. Weiner commented that they needed to make reasonable exceptions, but 
they should be all inclusive because the town was small. 
  

Peter Welch  moved that amendments to the language in Article III – Zoning 
Districts be moved a public hearing. Russ Cooke seconded the motion, and all were in 
favor. 

 
5) Article VII – Dimensional Requirements, Section 1 – Area, 
Frontage, Setbacks, Height, Coverage 

 
Chair Hebert stated that this was only an administrative change to coincide with 

the Workforce Housing Overlay District. 
 
 

6) Article VII – Dimensional Requirements, Section 2 – Maximum 
Length of Residential Roads 

 
Mr. Krebs stated that the length of residential dead-ends had been clarified. 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

6 
 

Mr. Cooke asked if the revision should mention that the 1,500-foot road length 
should be measured from roadway pavement, or if it would be a straight line. Mr. Krebs 
said it would be measured from the center line. Mr. Krebs agreed that it could specify 
that a residential dead-end road or street shall not exceed 1,500 of the center line to the 
furthest point of the cul-de-sac. 

Discussion ensued on whether the placement of the requirement should remain  
in the Subdivision Regulations, which allowed for a waiver, or moved to the Zoning 
Ordinance, as Attorney Ratigan had suggested, which would require a variance for any 
exceptions. 

Chair Hebert, Mr. Cross, Mr. Welch, and Mr. Weiner said they also liked keeping 
where it was. Mr. Krebs said that would be fine so long as it was understood that a 
waiver could not be granted from the Subdivision Regulations if a variance from the 
Ordinance was required. 
 Chair Hebert commented that regulations were adopted and controlled by the 
Planning Board, and the Ordinances were adopted by town vote. Chair Hebert said it 
was a question of whether the Planning Board should maintain control while reviewing 
the details of a subdivision, or whether the Board of Selectmen and ZBA would work 
with the intent of the Ordinance, and provide a legal option. Chair Hebert said he had 
mixed feelings because liked the Planning Board control of waivers, but Attorney 
Ratigan  disagreed, so it was up to the Board to consider. 
 Mr. Stern asked if there would be a statement removing the Planning Board’s 
right to do waiver. Mr. Krebs said they would need to say that a ZBA variance would be 
required for relief from road length regulations. 
 Chair Hebert asked about special exceptions. Mr. Krebs said he didn’t know what 
criteria the Board could create, so it would need to be a waiver or a variance.  
 Discussion ensued regarding notifications and  the scheduling of public hearings. 
Chair Hebert asked if a recommendation for a public hearing then became a warrant for 
the Town Meeting. Mr. Krebs replied that any amendment that was approved 
automatically became a warrant if voted in. Chair Hebert responded that an amendment 
could also be voted down for modification for the next public hearing.  
 Mr. Krebs said there would not be enough time to notice a public hearing for the 
next meeting, so he would recommend posting everything together for a single public 
hearing. Mr. Cross said he thought that the regulations had been discussed enough. 
  

Chris Cross moved to recommend amendments to Article VII – Dimensional 
Requirements, Section 1 – Area, Frontage, Setbacks, Height, Coverage and 
Dimensional Requirements, and Section 2 – Maximum Length of Residential Roads go 
to a public hearing. Ben Johnson seconded the motion, and all were in favor. 
 

7) Expansion of Workforce Housing Overlay District to include Tax 
Map 7, Lots 2A, 3, 24 and 25. 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

7 
 

 
Discussion ensued regarding meeting State mandates for affordable workforce 

housing opportunities. 
Mr. Krebs noted that Rockingham Planning Commission had suggested that the 

Town of Newington provide 120 units for affordable workforce housing , but he thought 
that 20 units would be for a town with only 600 residents. Chair Hebert added that  120 
units would be 28%, which would be a sudden change.  

Chair Hebert also talked about towns that had created affordable workforce 
housing ordinances, and later removed them. 
 Mr. Weiner said he thought that the small residential area was unique in size, 
and wetlands, and the Town should fight any proposals coming in, rather than make 
allowable ordinances. 
 Vice-Chair Mantz said she didn’t think that an additional area for affordable 
workforce housing needed to be added, but Mr. Latchaw disagreed because of the RSA 
for affordable workforce housing requirement in the residential zone. 

Chair Hebert commented that no one could agree on the number of housing units 
that were required. Mr. Latchaw agreed, and said ADU’s could easily meet the 
requirement. Mr. Latchaw stated that the onus is on towns to comply with the mandate, 
and suggested that it would be useful to identify how many accessory dwelling units 
(ADU’s) were in town that could be counted toward compliance. 

Mr. Johnson said permits could be pulled by the building inspector. Chair Hebert 
responded that it would be difficult to get an accurate read as some residents would be 
hesitant to acknowledge that they had built accessory dwelling units without building 
permits. 

Chair Hebert said it would also be a challenge to get residents to divulge what 
they were charging for rent. Mr. Krebs agreed, and said it would be an  issue was 
determining if their rents were low enough to meet affordable workforce housing criteria. 

Chair Hebert added that some of the accessory dwelling units were rented at 
lower rates to family members, and that would not qualify them as affordable workforce 
housing either. 
 Chair Hebert went on to say that other towns had found that residents weren’t 
willing to acknowledge their accessory dwelling units until they became concerned that 
multifamily affordable workforce housing that might come into their communities. 
 Mr. Cross commented that they were getting off topic from the workforce housing 
overlay discussion. Mr. Latchaw responded that the Board couldn’t base decisions on 
speculation until they knew more. Mr. Latchaw said an overlay district didn’t meet the 
residential zone requirement, and ADU’s would meet the requirement. Mr. Cross said 
Mr. Latchaw brought up  good points, but ADU’s and multiunit housing were both listed 
in the RSA.  
 Mr. Cross said two of the lots in the existing workforce housing overlay went up 
for sale, and he understood that there could be hesitancy that additional parcels could 



Town of Newington, NH 

PLANNING BOARD 

Meeting Minutes, Monday, January 4, 2021 
 

8 
 

open up more units. Mr. Cross said the lots in the proposed expansion of the workforce 
housing overlay had the highest potential for development because of the presence of 
municipal sewer and water, but he agreed that the Board should back off from 
expansion; however, he thought it would be beneficial to identify that the Town was 
flexible with other parcels between the highway and the railway drainage ditch 
depending on other factors.  
 Mr. Latchaw said he did not support the overlay district at all, and thought that 
ADU’s were the way to go. Mr. Cross said he recalled the Board of Selectmen saying 
they supported workforce housing when it was brought forth by the Planning Board last 
year, and it passed at the 2020 Town Meeting by a two-thirds majority.  
 Chair Hebert said the Board had included  this area in the original discussion last 
year,  but had removed it because they were  concerned with what would happen if all 
parcels became available at once and 200 units were put in overnight, so they decided 
to table the expansion. 

Mr. Krebs said he would put something together for discussion on the following 
Monday. 
   
Minutes: Erika Mantz moved to approve the Minutes for the October 29, 2020 

meeting with corrections as noted. Peter Welch seconded, and all were in 
favor. 
 
Erika Mantz moved to approve the Minutes for the November 30, 2020 
meeting with corrections as noted. Ken Latchaw seconded, and all were in 
favor. 
 

Adjournment:  Russ Cooke moved to adjourn the meeting. Erika Mantz seconded 
the motion and the meeting adjourned at 9 p.m.  

 

Next Meeting: Monday, January 11, 2021 

 

Respectfully 

Submitted by:  Jane K. Kendall, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 

These Minutes were approved and adopted by the Planning Board at their January 25, 2021 Meeting. 


